














VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
BOARD MINUTES
FEBRUARY 3, 2026

just voting on the first year of that plan that gets approved and goes into the operating budget.
She stated that the remaining four years are part of the capital improvements plan, but that each
year comes to the board for review and approval. Ms. Schumacher stated that's why the
discussion about bonds will happen over the summer or early Fall. She stated that the 8%
increase included bonds payments for the outgoing years, but not this first year.

Trustee Suwanski asked when water rate increases would begin. Ms. Schumacher stated those
would begin May 1% Trustee Suwanski asked about the water main replacement project. Mr.
Coulter stated that project has been going on but that we're increasing it to 1% and hoping to start
that in fiscal year 2028 if the bonds are approved. He stated that if the bonds don't get approved,
we won't be able to do 1% of our water mains. Trustee Suwanski stated that she went back and
listened to the minutes, and that President Gunsteen asked twice if the 8% covers debt service
on the bonds. Ms. Schumacher asked staff to go over the water main replacement program and
how it's paid for the board. Public works Director Dan Dinges stated that the water main project
that we currently have out to bid, was reduced to 2 million dollars. He stated that the project was
originally budgeted for 5 million plus and had to be reduced because we won't have that money
with the rate increase starting May 1. He stated that this fiscal year 2026-2027 will cover the 2-
million-dollar water main replacement and years after, if the board approves the bond and the 8%
increases, we will spend 5 million to replace the water main.

President Gunsteen wanted to confirm that from May 2026 the increase goes into effect until May
2027 He asked if that increase in water rate will cover 2 million. Mr. Coulter stated that the project
for water main in fiscal year 2027 is for 2 million. He went on to say that including the 8% increase
and the 1 million transfer, we would be at our minimum balance of about 3.5 million in the water
fund. Trustee Suwanski wanted to clarify the 8% increase. President Gunsteen stated that the
water increase rate is 8% for this coming year. He stated that we're not taking bonds until 2027,
which will be another 8% increase. Trustee Suwanski stated that it would be 16% to help cover
the bond cost and that it would probably be for 20-30 years. Mr. Coulter stated that it would likely
be a 20-year period. He stated that Stantec’s plan is a 10-year plan, and if we're going to do 1%
of our water mains every year, that's 5 million every year which means we have to do 3 bond
issuances. He stated their plan includes 8% increase for those ten years so that after that point
our revenues are at a point where we could do that water main replacement project without issuing
bonds at that point. He stated that it will also help pay back the current bonds plus have the
revenue to do this going forward continuously.

Trustee Gandsey wanted to confirm that the board was just voting for the one year 8% increase
not a five-year plan. Mr. Coulter stated that the board is voting to approve capital expenses of
$17.080,000 and that the board already approved the 8% increase which will take place in May.
Trustee Gandsey wanted to confirm that it was for just one year and that they would have to vote
again next year. Mr. Coulter stated that was correct. Trustee Gandsey asked how that would work
to ensure they have all the current information. Trustee Suwanski stated that she voted no several
times to the rate increases, tax levy increase, as well as rolling this into the budget. She stated
the reason she voted no is because she doesn't want a future board to be tied down to this
decision. She stated that 10 years from now, this will be brought to that board and they will get
told that they have to vote for this because we have debt service and can't pay for it. Ms.

VILLAGE OF BARTLETT BOARD MINUTES Page 4 of 8 REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 3, 2026



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
BOARD MINUTES
FEBRUARY 3, 2026

Schumacher stated that we currently have that debt service now. She went on to say that she
understands the board's position and apologized for not being as clear as they should’'ve been,
which is why they’re brought it back to the board for discussion. She stated that if the board
doesn’'t want to replace the 5 million and thinks moving forward with 2 million is fine, we can do
that but we still have to pay for it whether it's with bonds or a water rate increase. Ms. Schumacher
stated that we had 10 water main breaks this past weekend and this infrastructure needs to be
updated and taken care of. She went on to say that the consultants brought forward a 10-year
plan and if the board doesn'’t feel comfortable doing that, then they have a right to say no and we
would need to come up with a different plan.

Trustee Suwanski stated that she understood that was an option unless the bonds are already
approved. President Gunsteen stated that when the bond conversation comes before the board,
they will have a discussion in great detail about bonds. He stated that the 8% increase isn't just
the bonds and the water mains. He stated that every year there’s increases from DuPage water
which is significant. President Gunsteen stated that in the past we've absorbed some of those
increases but now we're at the point where we have to increase it regardless of whether we were
doing the water main project. He stated that Trustee Suwanski wants to make sure that there is
an option to opt out when we discuss bonds so that we're not locked into anything. Mr. Coulter
stated that they would come before the board every year to discuss this. Trustee Hopkins stated
that we will also talk about rate increases to cover the bond and that discussion will infinitely cover
that bond. Mr. Coulter stated that was correct. Trustee Hopkins stated that would mean that other
boards down the road won't necessarily have that problem because the rate increase is already
established. Mr. Coulter stated that was correct and perhaps some years we could do less than
5 million for the water main. He went on to say that we will make sure that the board approves
everything that we're doing including issuance. Trustee Hopkins stated that he thinks it's important
that the board knows which water main we are replacing or fixing before we approve a bond. Mr.
Dinges stated that as Ms. Schumacher stated, we had 10 water main breaks over the weekend.
He went on to say that we could put a plan in place, but plans do change and we need to pivot
depending on where we see the most activity is occurring. President Gunsteen stated that he
wanted to reiterate that just because we're replacing water mains, doesn’t necessarily mean that
we're not going to have water main breaks as that's inevitable. Mr. Dinges discussed a meeting
with a consultant today about new technology where they can do soundings on mains and get the
condition of the main prior. He stated that they're looking to try to incorporate some of that into

their analysis as well.

Trustee LaPorte stated that they can all agree that they want what's best for Bartlett and to make
sure the funds go where they need to go. He stated that he didn’t recall the bond conversation
with Stantec and thought the 8% increase would cover everything. President Gunsteen stated
that a sewer and water main project isn't something that wows anyone or makes residents feel
like the town is progressing forward. However, when an entire subdivision loses water for an entire
weekend, they would understand what this project entails and why it's so important. He stated
that it is important for us to move forward for our infrastructure if we want to stay ahead of the

game.

Trustee Suwanski asked what the Municipal Building improvements were that were presented in

VILLAGE OF BARTLETT BOARD MINUTES Page 50f 8 REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 3, 2026



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
BOARD MINUTES
FEBRUARY 3, 2026

the budget. Mr. Dinges stated those were the village hall improvements which include Council
Chamber AV equipment, carpet replacement as well as HVAC controls. Trustee Suwanski wanted
to confirm that if they're uncomfortable with the projects that come before the board that they can
push back and have further discussion. President Gunsteen stated that as the actual purchases
come before the board, they would be voting on every single item separately

ROLL CALL VOTE TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2026-07-R, A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE
2026-2030 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

AYES: Trustees Battermann, Deyne, Gandsey, Hopkins, LaPorte, Suwanski
NAYS: None

ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

Trustee LaPorte introduced the Lauterbach & Amen LLP Auditor Extension. He stated that the
Village of Bartlett’s three-year contract with our current auditors, Lauterbach & Amen LLP, expired
with the completion of the April 30, 2025, audit. Lauterbach & Amen LLP has extensive
governmental auditing experience, and the Village has been very pleased with the services they
have provided. Therefore, staff recommend extending the engagement with our current auditors
for another three years. He stated that attached is a proposal from Lauterbach & Amen LLP, to
extend their contract for three additional years along with the fee schedule from the prior contract.
The contract has a three-year total of $142,005. Trustee LaPorte moved to approve the
Lauterbach & Amen LLP Auditor Extension. That motion was seconded by Trustee Deyne.

Trustee Gandsey proposed that we utilize a new accounting firm stating that we've used them for
the last six years or so. She stated that she'd like to see the village get a different firm. Mr. Coulter
stated that for a municipality our size, there’s only two firms that we can go with. He stated that
three years ago, they did take this to RFP where they sent it to eleven auditing firms and only two
responded. Ms. Schumacher wanted to clarify that it's not the same auditors that come out, it's a
different auditing team each time. Village Attorney Kurt Asprooth stated that based on his
experience with other clients, there have been several firms that have backed away from
performing audits with public clients. He stated that as Mr. Coulter stated, the pool of firms that
are used to perform these services has really been narrowed. Trustee Suwanski and Trustee
LaPorte stated that they agree it's good to do a rotation and would support an RFP. President
Gunsteen asked what time frame is needed to lock this in. Mr. Coulter stated that we usually have
the preliminary audit meeting at the end of March early April which would put us in a time crunch.
Trustee LaPorte suggested that we do a one-year contract to give us time to do research and
bring it back to the board. Ms. Schumacher and Village Attorney Asprooth stated that they don't
have to have formally competitive bids, we can just seek quotes from companies to see what
those look like if that's what the board would like. President Gunsteen stated that staff should
seeks quotes and bring it back to the board. If we don't get any quotes, then we can discuss the
RFP process. Trustee Suwanski stated that they could also explore the one-year contract at the

same time as well.

VILLAGE OF BARTLETT BOARD MINUTES Page 6 of 8 REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 3, 2026












VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
COMMITTEE MINUTES
February 3, 2026

was correct and that anything building related gets a permit for that work to be completed. President
Gunsteen also wanted to confirm that anything outside the norm that Planning and Development services
would issue permits for, we are not looking for inspections on that. He stated that it is not under the
purview of our building inspectors but instead under public works to make sure they're following state
requirements.

Trustee Gandsey asked if this will also serve to make sure that the company doing the work has done what
they're supposed to do. Mr. Dinges stated that they typically have a consultant who completes the design
work and then watches over the contractors that are doing the work to make sure that work on the project

is being completed accurately.

B. BUILDING AND ZONING COMMITTEE, CHAIRMAN HOPKINS

1. CP #25-07 Oaks at Bartlett Concept Plan

Trustee Hopkins stated that the new owners of Hearthwood Senior Living (originally Clare Oaks), are
requesting feedback from the Committee of the Whole prior to submitting a development application to
amend the Planned Unit Development for the Immaculata Property. He stated that the petitioner is
proposing to construct 22 buildings with a total of 44 duplex units on the remaining 12.7 acres of property.
The original Master PUD Plan anticipated continued operation of Clare Woods Academy, future
medical/office buildings and 10 duplex units for this portion of the property.

Ms. Stone stated that since the packet was sent out, the applicant has decided that they would like to add
a clubhouse building for the duplex units. She stated that these duplexes are very similar to what is already
at Clare Oaks on the South side of Carillion Drive and matches what the original layout was. She stated
that this would be giving us additional units, and when we saw the original concept plan, one of the
concerns at the time was that there wasn’t enough density on the 12 acres. President Gunsteen wanted
to point out that this was the former application for Maryville and that this would incorporate raising and
removing that building during this process. President Gunsteen asked how many units, Ms. Stone said that
it would be a total of 44 units that would be a part of the Clare Oaks Community. Trustee Suwanski asked
if this would be incorporated within the senior housing, Ms. Stone stated that they will be adding
sidewalks to make sure it's incorporated and that there’s a lot of demand for this type of product. She
went on to say that this also meets one of our strategic plan goals providing additional housing types

within the village.

Ms. Stone stated that the applicant was online and could answer questions. Mr. NeCastro introduced Mr.
Schwartz who stated that an endeavor is to construct these independent living cottages which would be
rental and fully continuous within the community. He stated that within the new plan, they would receive
meals, transportation, and housekeeping maintenance as part of their rent. He went on to say that these
would be identical both in design and in service offering. Trustee Hopkins thanked the applicant for being
present and answering questions. Ms. Stone stated that since the applicant has received positive feed back
from the board, they would be directed to submit a full development application for the board’s review.

VILLAGE OF BARTLETT COMMITTEE MINUTES Page 2 of 4 REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 3, 2026



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
COMMITTEE MINUTES
February 3, 2026

2. CP #25-13 Bartlett Meadow

Trustee Hopkins stated that the Pulte Group submitted a full development application for a single-family
development on 19.75 acres located at the Southwest corner of Route 59 and Lake Street. The
subdivision/PUD Plat identifies 28 single-family lots. The floor plans would range in size from 2,391 square
feet to 3,826 square feet with 3-6 bedrooms. The development of the 19.75-acre property is subject to a
consent decree entered in 1997.

Ms. Stone stated that the petitioner is present to answer any questions and go over details if needed. She
stated that they are requesting some modifications from setbacks and lot size, however in this case almost
every lot backs up to open space. She stated that there are some significant wetlands on the property that
could cause some constraints with how this property could be developed. Ms. Stone stated that we do
show a future connection to the property to the South which is almost a strip where it's 7-15 feet wide,
and that taxes have been unpaid for a significant amount of time. She stated that in the event that we
could have ownership of that property, we would like to see a connection so that this could eventually
have access all the way to Route 59. Trustee Deyne asked about a different parcel which Ms. Stone
confirmed was unincorporated. He asked whether there's a possibility of incorporating that into the
village. Ms, Stone stated that the county has expressed interest over time, that they would like to have
villages incorporate as much of these outlying parcels as possible. Trustee Gandsey asked if they would
contribute to a bike path. Ms. Stone stated that we only have sidewalks proposed for this because there
wasn’t a plan. She stated that the bike path plan does not identify any in this location.

Trustee LaPorte asked if Ms. Stone could summarize the consent decree so that we could have it on
record. Ms. Stone stated that there was a consent decree that basically said the property had to be
advertised for commercial use for at least 15 years before the property owner could apply for residential
zoning and the residential zoning provided was less than what they had originally proposed. She went on
to say that the village doesn’t have too much authority to counter that this is significantly less than what
was originally proposed in the Eagle Ridge subdivision. Trustee Deyne asked if there was any area
designated for a park for residents. Ms. Stone stated that the park district did not want a park site on this
facility and that they preferred a cash donation and felt this was close enough to Peregrine Park in Eagle
Ridge. President Gunsteen stated that his concern is that the homes on Haley Drive face the back of the
current auto dealership lot. He stated that he wants to make sure we're not going to receive future
complaints and suggested a fence or good screening through landscaping. Ms. Stone stated that the
applicant stated that they’re putting in a six-foot-tall solid wood fence along that northern property line
on the north side of that drive. She stated that they’re also going to have more of a split rail decorative
fence along the rear of the lots that back up to the wetlands. Trustee Hopkins stated that if there were no
more questions, this would be sent to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a public hearing.

C. COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, CHAIRMAN GANDSEY

1. Strategic Plan Summary Report

VILLAGE OF BARTLETT COMMITTEE MINUTES Page 3 of 4 REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 3, 2026


















































































































































































































ORDINANCE 2026-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 3 OF THE BARTLETT MUNICIPAL
CODE REGARDING THE NUMBER OF CLASS A AND CLASS V LIQUOR
LICENSES

WHEREAS, pursuant to the lllinois Liquor Control Act of 1934, the Village has the
power by general ordinance or resolution to determine the number, kind, and
classification of licenses for the sale of alcoholic liquor not inconsistent with the Liquor
Control Act, and to establish such further regulations and restrictions upon the issuance
of and operations under local licenses not inconsistent with law as the public good and
convenience may require, 235 ILCS 5/4-1, et seq.; and

WHEREAS, Section 3-3-2 of the Bartlett Municipal Code provides that in the event
a liquor license shall lapse, be revoked, or is terminated in any manner, the authorized
number of licenses issued in that classification shall be automatically reduced accordingly

without further action by the village board; and
WHEREAS, the current number of authorized Class A liquor licenses is 26; and
WHEREAS, the current number of authorized Class V liquor licenses is 12; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village desire to increase the number
of authorized Class A and Class V liquor licenses as set forth in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Bartlett, Cook, DuPage and Kane Counties, lllinois, pursuant to its home
rule authority, as follows:

SECTION ONE: AMENDMENT TO SUBSECTION 3-3-2-1(C). That
Subsection 3-3-2-1(C), of Chapter 3 of Title 3 of the Bartlett Municipal Code is hereby

amended to read as follows:

“C. Number Issued: The number of Class A licenses shall be limited to 27
“C. Number Issued: The number of Class V licenses shall be limited to 13

SECTION THREE: SEVERABILITY. If any section, paragraph or provision of this
Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION FOUR: REPEAL OF PRIOR ORDINANCES. All prior Ordinances
and Resolutions in conflict or inconsistent herewith are hereby expressly repealed only to

the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.
















































































































































































































































	Board Agenda
	6. Public Hearing Minutes February 3rd
	6. Board Minutes February 3rd
	6. Committee Minutes February 3rd
	7. Bill List
	10. President's Report: Introduction of Houseal Lavigne Associates, LLC
	11. A 1. Resolution Approving of the Professional Service Agreement between the Village of Bartlett and Houseal Lavigne Associates, LLC 
	11. B 1. Resolution Approving of the Professional Service Agreement between the Village of Bartlett and Houseal Lavigne Associates, LLC 
	11. D 1. Ordinance Amending the Bartlett Municipal Code Regarding Village Antinepotism Policies
	11. D 2. Liquor License Creation Class J - 120 Live Bartlett, Inc.
	11. D 3. Liquor License Creation Class A & Class V – ME2050 Inc (Midway)
	11. D 4. Liquor License Creation Class B & Class VC – Botanical Harmony Inc. (Mila’s)
	11. F 1. Resolution Approving the Concrete Replacement Program Agreement Between the Village of Bartlett And Schroeder & Schroeder Inc.
	11. F 2. Resolution Approving of the 2026 Water Main Replacement Project Agreement Between the Village of Bartlett and Gerardi Sewer and Water Co.
	11. F 3. Ordinance Amending the Bartlett Municipal Code Regarding Stormwater Management Regulations



